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" TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Trustees of Avonreach Academy Truet present their annual report together with the financial statements and
auditor’s report of the charitable company for the period from 1st September 2018 to 31st. August 2019. The
annual report serves the pUrposes of both a Trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.,

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the accounting pollces set out in note 1 to the accounts
and comply with the charitable company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, the Companies Act 2006,
the Statement of Recommended Practice 2015, 'Accountrng and Reporting by Charities’, and the Academies
Accounts Dlrectron 2018/19 issued by the ESFA. .

" The principal ob;ect of the company is the advancement of education in the Unlted ngdom it achleves this
object principally through the operatlon of 4 schools in rural Worcestershlre

. Pershare High School: Co-educatlonal 12-18yr olds: ' ‘

~Cherry Orchard First School (Orchard Primary School from 1st September 2019) Co—educatronal 29yr
olds.
Inkberrow First School (Inkberrow Primary Schoal from 1*’l September 2019); ! Co—educatlonat 49yr oIds

~Norton Juxta Kempsey CE First School (Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary School from 18t September
2019): Co-educatlonal 49yr.olds:

The aim belng to provide the hlghest standard of education and pastoral care for the communlty and preparing. .
. its students for life in a global socrety : .

The Academy Trust has a roll of 1,599 in the school census return dated 3rd October 2019

Structure, Gpvemance and Management

Constitution

The Academy Trust is a.company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s
. Memorandum and Articles of ‘Association are the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The

Trustees of Avonreach Academy Trust are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of
. ecompany law. The charitable company.is known as Avonreach Academy -Trust. Details of the Trustees who
. served throughout the year except as noted are included in the Reference and Administrative details above.

"Members' Liability

Each member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in -
the event of it being wound up while they are @ member, or within one year after they.cease to be a member, -
such amount as may be reqmred not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased
to be-a member. '

Trustees’ Indemnities:

-In accordance with normal commermal practice the Academy Trust provides nndemnlty insurance to cover the =
liability of Trustees which by virtue of any rule of law would otherwise attach to them in respect of any neglrgence
defaurt breach of trust or breach of duty of which they may be guilty in relation to the Trust

Method of Recrurtment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The maximum number of Trustees permitted under the Trust's Articles of Association is 12 at any time. The
Diocesan Board of Education is entitled to appoint up to 3 Trustees, providing that the total number of Trustees
appointed does not exceed 25% of the total number of Trustees. The Executive Officer is Accountrng Offi icer and
a Trustee. At their meeting in January 2019, Members agreed to reduce the number of Trustees to 9.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Trustees are appointed for a fo\ur-year period. Subject to remaining, any Trustee can be re-appointed. or re-
elected. . : ' -
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

Induction and training for Trustees will depend on their experience and/or knowledge. Trustees aim to ensure -
that the Board maintains the relevant skill set and an annual skills audit is undertaken to determine training
“needs. Where necessary, training in charity, educational, legal and financial matters will be provided. Tralmng is
tailored specifically to the needs of the individual and the Board.

LAl Trustees are provrded with the information needed (including pohcnes minutes, budgets etc.) to undertake
their role. .

Organisational Structure

. The Board of Trustees comprises those persons appointed under the Articles of Association. The Board meets
formally at least three times per year. Discussions are held-and decisions are made or ratified as appropriate.
Trustees delegate-specific responsibilities to Committees, the activities of which are reported to and discussed at .
full Board meetings. The Trustees are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and
budget, monitoring the use of the budget, making major decisions about the strategic direction of the Trust

" capital expenditure and senior staff appointments. .

~ .In 2018, the Board created a Chairs’ Committee, comprising the Chair of Trustees, Chairs of the Trust Board
- Committees and EO, CFOO, to review progress of actions from prior Trust Board meetings and set the agenda
.- for the following meeting, as a method of maintaining focus and driving key operational improvements. A regular
.communication forum, has also beenimplemented, chaired by Chair of Trustees andfor the EO, with
.Headteachers and Chairs of Governors of the MAT schools to provrde a two-way conduit between school
leaders and Tmst leaders.

.There are three maln Committees which also meet at least three times per year: finance, audit and risk; HR, pay
. .and performance; and ethos and community. These Committees provide the opportunity for detailed discussion
» and policy development. Decisions reached at Committee are reported to the Board and, where necessary,
interim decisions are reported to the full Board for ratification. .

- . The Trustees are responsible for the strategic direction of the Trust and have the ultimate decision-making
authority. This is exercised through the strategic planning process, undertaken by the Trust's strategy group, and
setting of policy. It is managed through business planning, budget monitoring, performance management, the
setting  of standards and the implementation of quality management processes. In addition to the approval final
: 'budget and audited accounts and statutory .policies, the Trustees have reserved the power to approve the
. appointment of Headteachers and approve expenditure over prescribed amounts. In addition, the CFOO and
Chair of the finance, audit and risk Committee have recently established"a regular cycle of meetings with
Headteachers and Chairs of Governing Bodies to review and scrutinise budget management. ~ .

. The governance of each of the schools is delegated to a Local Govermng Body which meets at Ieast termly, and
reports are provided to and reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

. Each of the Local Governing Bodies is organised as appropriate to cover:

°« Finance and resources (including HR and pay)
. Teaching and learning :
e . Ethos and Community (NJK only)
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Local Gov'ernmg Bodies and their Committees are formally constituted with terms of reference and comprise
“appropriately qualified and. experienced members Their activities are reported and discussed with the Trust
Board on at least a termly basis. )

The day to day-management of each of the academies is delegated to the - mdrvrdual Headteachers and
. leadership teams at each school : :

The Trust's Executlve Officer is the Accounting Officer and the Director of Flnance and Operatlons at Pershore ...
. Hrgh School is the Chief Financial Officer.

: Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key manaqement personnel

‘The executive leadership team _(EO & CFOO) are the key management personnel of the Trust. Trustees.are also
senior management although they receive no pay or other remuneration in respect of their roles. The pay of the
Headteachers is set annually. The Performance Management of the Headteachers.is carried out by the
Executive Officer and supported by Local Governing Bodies and a School Improvement Partner, in line with the

" Trust's Pay and Performance Management policy. The performance management of other leadership team :

members is undertaken by the individual Headteachers. The Executive Officer's performance management is

" undertaken by the Chair of Trustees with advice from the School Improvement Partner. All pay
recommendations are reviewed and moderated by the Trust's Performance Management Review Group,-
comprising the Chair of Trustees, EO, Chair of fi nance audit and risk Committee and CFOO and ratrfled by the

‘HR, pay and performance Commnttee : .

Trade Unron Facrlrty Trm
No percentage of time spent on facmty time to report as none requested durlng the penod

Related Parties and Other Connected Charities and Orqamsatrons

There are some related party relationships which are acknowledged at the Trustees' meetings through:the
pecuniary interest forms, and any financial transactions are disclosed in the notes to the accounts. Pershore
High School has a trading company,.and this is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Academy ‘The tradrng company
accounts are consolldated with Avonreach Academy Trust's accounts. .

Obiectrves and Actlvrtles

Objects and Aims -

The principal object of the Trust is the advancement of education in the United Krngdom It achreves this object
_principally through the operation of Pershore High School, Orchard Primary School, Inkberrow Primary School

and Norton Juxta Kempsey Primary School (formally first schools). The aim being to provide the highest- possible ~:

standard of education and pastoral care for the community and maximising the life chances of students with a
range of different abilities.

Our Vision

For Avonreach Academy Trust to be the natural choice for parents who asplre to the best educatronal outcomes :
for their children from age 2 to 19. : .
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. TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) .
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Our Aims
. Enable all our pupils to reach their full potentlal and become positive, confident and actlve members of the
- local community and today's global society (Objectives 1 and 2), . )
e Promote respect; responsibility and a life-long love of learning  within - canng, compassmnate and
stimulating environments (Objectives 2 and 4);

e Build a family of schools through effective collaboration and strong leadership (Objectlves 3and 5)
Identify and mahage risk (Objective 6). : .

We value

Aspiration
- Collaboration
. Responsibility
Respect
- Kindness

Avonreach Academy Trust- will build, through considered and controlled growth, a famlly of-schools that use’
effective collaboration to ensure ambitious outcomes are achieved for all its puplils, allowing them to reach their .
full potentlal and become posutlve conf dent and act|ve members of tomorrow’s global soc1ety

Schools within the Trust are encouraged to develop and flourish W|th their own unique ethos an’d identities, ‘
promoting respect,. responsnblhty and a hfelong fove of leammg with caring, compassuonate and stimulating
environments. . o . _

The Trust's strap line is ‘Collaborating for Success'..

Obijectives, 'Stl‘ateqies and 'Activiti_eé

An immediate activity is to return the MAT to a surplus position. Financial pressures continue to exist across the -
Trust due to the historical position at Pershore High School and the lagged funding arrangements linked to the
change of age process in the Primary Schools. The low levels of funding generally and in Worcestershire
schools particularly continue to be a. concern to the Board. A robust plan for financial recovery has been-
. developed and discussed with the Education Funding Skill Agency (ESFA) to ensure the MAT remalns flnanC|aIIy
sustalnable in the short term , . N\

The strateglc objectlves of the Trust are outllned in the Trust's strateglc development plan and summarised
below: . . .

_ . Objective 1: Excellence in Performance and-Standards .. . C :
~. Construct and deliver a broad and balanced, high quality curriculum that gives all learners from the ages

© of 2 to 19 the knowledge, skills and ambition-that they need to succeed in life. Ensure that the highest -
levels of achievement are secured for all pupils by sustaining high levels of attainment and progress for all
Trust schools. Develop staff who are highly skllled motivated, accountable, supportlve compass:onate
and caring.

_ Aim for excellence in performance and standards through
1. A high-quality curriculum;
2. Highest levels of progress and achlevement : .
3. High quality professional development for all staff, whlch builds and lmproves on practice and
subject knowledge :
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

ObJectlve 2: Excellence in the Personal Development
Ensure that all Trust schools have a culture of safeguarding that facilitates effective arrangements for
- keeping children safe. Ensure the highest levels of wellbeing and involvement by developing young people

with increased confidence, resilience and self-estéem. Provide high quality pupil and. family support. ==

Construct and deliver a curriculum that is highly effective in preparing pupils in all schools for the future
opportunmes responsibilities and experiences of life in a global society. Establish positive and respectful
cultures in all Trust schools in which all feel safe and prepare learners for life as active citizens of the
future in modern Britain and the world.
- Aim for excellence in personal development through:;
1. . Arobust culture of effective safeguarding; - :
2. Developing the character of pupils by helping them to discover and develop thelr interests and
talents through a range of opportunities available to them;
3. Provrdrng high quahty pupll and family support

Objective 3: Excellence in Leadership and Governance :

Ensure that all leaders and Trust Members and Trustees are clear in thelr roles and responsibilities, so

that they fulfil their statutory duties. All should have a clear vision for providing high-quality and inclusive -
education through strong, shared values, policies and practice. Create a strong infrastructure within the

Multi Academy Trust to support a highly collaborative family of schools that are recogmsed as-centres of

excellence for teaching and leaming, governance and leadership.

Aim for excellence in leadership and governance through:

1. Arobust culture and administration of safeguarding;

2. A clear definition and understandrng of roles and responsibilities;

3. A clear and ambitious vision for providing high quallty, inclusive educatron and tralmng for all.

Objectlve 4: Excellence in Stakeholder Engagement

Ensure that all leaders engage fully with members of the local community. Build strong relationships and
close collaboration between Trust.and non-Trust schools to share best practice.

Aim for excellence in stakeholder engagernent through: ’

1. Fostering and establishing closer working relationships with internal and external stakeholders

2. - Establish opportunities for considered and mutually beneficial growth

.Objective 5: Excellence in Central Business Servrces :

Ensure that the Trust has business arrangements that are efficient and. effective to enable it to deliver on
its commitment to grow, prosper and deliver value for money across all its operations.

Aim for excellence in central business services through:

1. Robust financial management and reporting systems;
2. Effective procurement to evidence value for money;
3. . Exploration of opportunities for income generation.

Objective 6: Identify and Manage Risk
Aim for excellence in risk management through:

1. Calibrating an attitude to risk in key areas;
2. Continuing to develop effective mechanisms for the timely identification of potentlal rrsk
3. Formulate effective systems of risk management. . :

Public Benefit

In setting the objectives, the Trustees have considered the Charity Commission’s general gwdance on publlc
benefit and in particular to its supplementary public benefit guldance on advancrng education.

The Trust prov1des facilities for recreational and other leisure time occupatron for the community at large in the
interests of social welfare and with the interests of i improving life in the local community.

~
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

- Strategic report
* Achievements and Performance
Avonreach Academy Trust can reflect upon a year,of positive outcomes for its pupils as hignlighted‘below. With

the support of a School improvement Partner and the -Executive Officer, significant progress’has also been made -
‘in cross-trust subject working and the development of a vibrant Upper Key Stage 2'curriculum, as well as -

“ preparations for how this will ultimately contribute to a Year 7 curriculum in the high school. 2018-19 was the. " < -

academic year in which the Trust was given permission for its first schools to become primaries (from -
September 2019) and for Pershore High School to take Year 7 pupils for the first time in"September 2021. A
great-deal of attention has been paid within. Trust primary schools to the personal development and Ieadershlpu
opportunities afforded to Year 5 and 6 pupils. -

Curriculum development is well underway. The Intent/implement/impact approach "in th'e new . OFSTED
framework is already being embedded in the primary. schools and is helping to focus .on developments. The
involvement of the School Improvement Partner has been vital to this, providing tools against which to evaluate
the curriculum and focus.upon knowledge acquisition as well as skills development. Curricular have been revused
considering changes to the OFSTED framework and to bring about improvements in pup|| vocabulary

Curriculum documentatlon includes Curriculum Guldance Curriculum Intent, Long term Curriculum Plannlng .
(including six vertical drivers’ common to all Trust primaries), Curriculum Fact Sheets, values and vision, non-
negotiables (mcludlng marking). TOpIC Development is spreadlng across History, Science, Art and De5|gn D&T,
and Compulting. ’

Collaboration between schools in the MAT is going well Real detail has come together on the Year 5

Curriculum. Year 6 will be at a headline level at the end of this academic year. Future work W|th Schaol - -

Improvement Adwsor is planned for 201 9-20

" Page9



TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

. 2019 Outcomes:

Pershore High School:

2019 (provisional)

2018

‘| GCSE Grade 4+ (Eng + Ma) 71.36% 63.49%
GCSE.Grade 5+ (Eng & Ma) 44.55% 38.62%

EBacc Standard Pass (Entry) 72.55% 57.53%

'| EBacc Strong Pass (Entry) 49.02% . - 32.88%
Attainment 8 ) _ 492 . 46.43
Progress 8 +0.2 -0.03
A level (A*-E) 98.52% 99.64% - -

A level (A*-C) 79.80% '73.48%
A level (A*-B) 53.20%" 51.61% -
‘A level (A*-A) - 26.11% 26.52%
Progress Score +0.28 +0.01
Average.Points “36.13 - 314
Average Grade . B- C
ALPS 3 5

Primary School Outcomes: .

. EYFS: .

T _ - COFS - IFS NJK
Pupils : 28 26 29 .
Development - expected level or exceeding “71% 81% 86%
National 72% 72% - 72% .
Phonics, Yr1 93% 100% - 90%

. COFS - IFS NJK
Pupils ) 30 28 .35
Reading - Expected Standard 80 - 78 74 -
Reading - Greater Depth 23 33 17
Wiiting — Expected Standard 83 . 78 74 .-
Writing — Greater Depth . 23 _ 18 6
Maths — Expected Standard 87 82 80
Maths — Greater Depth. 20 33 1

Year 4. C )

COFS IFS - NJK -
Reading 65% 93% 65%
Writing _ 62% 83% 74%
Maths 84% 93% 57%
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Key Performahce 'Indicators

. The Trust uses the progress of students at Key Stages GCSE and A level as the main KPIs for the dellvery of |ts
primary objectlve together with retaining or improving on its Ofsted and internal assessments o ’

The following are the Key Performance Indlcators/T argets that have been set for future academic years.
Monitoring of performance against these targets will be carried out by Local Governlng Bodies at: each school

- and the Executlve Leadershlp Team on behalf of the Trust.

Pershore H/gh School

2019/20 Target
GCSE grade 4+ (Eng + Ma) _ . 82.85% - i
GCSE grade 5+ (Eng &Ma) - ' 59.83%
- EBacc Standard Pass (Entry) | "~ 86.44%.
EBacc Strong Pass (Entry) B ' 72.88% -
- Attainment 8 . 1 . 53.84
Progress 8 : : ‘ n/a .
A level (A*-E) . . i ] o 100%
A level (A*-C) ' , . ... 80%
A level (A*-B) . : ) 55%
A level (A*-A) ' ‘ , 20%
Progress Score : : . +0.25
Average points : - 36.5.
Average grade . 3 . B-
ALPS L . 3
Primary Schools T C
L : COFS - _IFS NJK
‘Phonics ' 75-85% 93% - 88%
KS2 - Reading ~ARE = _ 63% © 93-95% . - 85-88%
KS2 - Reading — Greater Depth ' ‘ 19-22% 25-35% 22-33%
KS2 -Writing —ARE . - . 63% - 89-91% - 79-82%
KS2 - Writing — Greater Depth - ~ ' 19-22% | 19-22% 10-16% -
KS2 - Maths — ARE : 77% 89-94% . 84-87% .
KS2 - Maths —Greater Depth . 20-25% 30-40% 21-30%
Yr5 - Reading — ARE ‘ : 73-82% 92-96% 91-95%
Yr5 - Reading = Greater Depth : . 38-42% -52-59% - 48-59%
Yr5 - Writing — ARE . 68-86% |- 93-95% 95-97%
Yr5 - Writing — Greater Depth . : 30-35% 45-53% 45-590%
Yr5-Maths—-ARE =~ . : 80-86% 94-96% 95-97%
Yr5 - Maths — Greater Depth 40-44% 48-62% 49-63%
" Attendance ' - 97.5% 97.5% - 97.5%
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Going Concern

‘The Trustees of Avonreach-Academy Trust strongly believe.that 2019-20 is the year when the Trust will make
significant strides forward. Over the first two years of the Trust's existence its work was dominated by the- change
of age agenda. Permission for its schools to change their age ranges was granted by the RSC Headteacher
Board on 15th December 2018 and Inkberrow, Norton Juxta Kempsey and Orchard primaries camie into
éxistence in September 2019, with Pershore High School taking its first Year 7 pupils in September 2021, The
performance of our four schools at Key Stages.1, 4 and 5 in 2019 was extremely encouraging and results inthe
setting of ambitious targets for continued success in 2020. .

| The membershlp of the Trust Board and the Trust’s Membershlp has been radlcally changed overthe last 12
mionths, with the number of Trustees being reduced to 9 with the removal of Headteachers from the Board. The

: quality and expertise of Trustees Members has also been significantly strengthened, especially in the areas of -

governance. One vacancy remams and the Board are actively seektng to recruit a person W|th Iegal and HR - o
expertise to this post. . .

‘Prior to the formation of Avonreach Academy Trust in. August 2017, the Governing Body of Pershore High -

- School had built up financial reserves to cover a known change in local demographics. The historically low birth

* rate has reached its peak but is still affecting Sixth Form numbers. in addition, the lagged allocation of funding

for the new, year 5 cohort in the primary schools and other unfunded cost pressures-has resulted in the Trust's

-reserves being exhausted. The Board recognises that the financial position is a.significant risk and Trustees.

have been in dialogue with the ESFA and have prepared a recovery plan that puts in place actions to mitigate

~ that risk. The Trust has worked closely with the ESFA's School Resource Management Advisor (SRMA) to

‘review and analyse costs and an action plan has been prepared to support the Trust's recovery strategy. This

.'plan includes the significant work that has been undertaken at Pershore. High School to reduce staﬁ” ing costs.
The pay bill for 2019-20 has been reduced considerably.from the prevuous year.

- After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable ‘expectation that the Trust has

adequate resources to continue in operational existenice for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues . -

- to adopt the going concern basis in. preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoptuon of
the going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial statements .
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Financial Review -

“The Trust receives its income from a range of sources. The majority comes from central government in the form
of recurrent grants from Educations and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). Funding is based largely on pupil

numbers with an Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) allocation in line with pupil numbers recorded in the October -

census. These funds form the ‘General Annual Grant' (GAG) and cover staffing and general running costs of the
Trust. The ESFA also provide additional grants which are earmarked for specific purposes, for example, Pupil
Premium, which must be used to raise attainment of disadvantaged pupils. The Trust may also receive additional
-grants from the Local Authority, for example, SEND funding, where the Trust fulfils responsibilities on behalf of
the Local Authority in respect of its students. Other income received by the Trust includes that from parents (for
trips etc.) or other third parties, for example, interest from the Trust's bankers. This income may be ‘restricted’ or

‘unrestricted’ depending on whether is comes with conditions as to its use or whether it-is available for spending- -

at the discretion of the Trustees The key i income sources for each school remarns the GAG funding.

The Academy also receives grants for fixed assets from the ESFA. In accordance with the Charities Statement -
of Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities' (SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the =
Statement of Financial Activities as' restricted income in the fixed asset fund.. The restricted fixed asset fund ..
‘balance is reduced by annual deprecratron charges over the expected useful Ilfe of the assets concemed

As at 31st August 2019 fund balances were as follows:

Fund . Category 2019 2018

_ , . £000 £'000
GAG Restricted General Funds - (237) (152)
Total . ] General Restricted Funds (237) . (152)
Unspent capital grants . | Restricted Fixed Asset Funds 302 98
Total Spendable Funds' - “302° - 98
Net Book Value of Fixed Assets | Restricted Fixed Asset Fund 16,780 . 16,971
Share of LGPS deficit - Restricted Pension Reserve . (4688) | (2,893)
Total . All funds . 12,157 14,024

During the year ended 31 August 2019, total expenditure of £8,404k (2018: £8,293k) was funded by recurrent -
‘grant funding from the ESFA together with other incoming resources. The excess of expenditure over income for
the period (excluding restricted fixed asset funds and transfers to restricted fixed asset funds) was £60k (2018:
deficit of £330k). At 31 August 2019 the net book value of fixed assets was £16,780k (2018: £16,971)

In common with all academies and local authorities, the Trust has an ongoing commitment to its share of the '
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) deficit. Whilst this is not a conventional liability, it does need to be
reflected in the accounts, although it does not need to be deducted from spendable funds. The Trust meets its
obligations in respect of LGPS by paying over pension contributions due as calculated by the -scheme's
actuaries. As'at 31t August 2019 the LGPS showed a defrcrt of £4,688k (2018: £2,893k)

All expenditure supports the activities of each of the schools and'is monltored carefully by the Local Governlng
Bodies (LGB). )

: Salanes for Ieadershrp personnel within the Trust are benchmarked in line with those set at similar size schools
wrthrn the Local Authonty . .
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued) .
" FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

'Rese'rves Policy

The principal policy on reserves is that any accumulatlon of unspent GAG balances should not breach any limits -
. set out in the Funding Agreement. '

Each year the Governors and Trustees review the resource requrrements and grant and other mcome that is
forecasted for the comlng year and an annual budget i is formulated and approved. .

Trustees recognise the need to have sufficient reserves to protect against possible reductions in future funding
however, current funding levels do not allow for ‘an accumulation of funds at this time. Indeed reserves have.
been exhausted. ‘

A Recovery Plan has been prepared to manage this short-term position with a view to workrng towards the aim-
of the Reserves Policy when puprl numbers and hence GAG fundmg is predicted toincrease in future years

The aim of Trustees is to accrue reserves that will enab|e growth and support schools wrthln the Trust to ﬂounsh
The Trust aims to build a reserve of 3x its monthly salary bill over time. This aim will be supported through the .
robust management -of the Trust's expenditure and value for money processes and procedures, identification
-and exploitation of economres of scale, and a drive towards income generation.

Investment Policy -

Due to'the-nature and timing of receipt of funding, the Trust may at times hold cash ‘balances surplus to its short-
term requirements. Trustees are committed to ensuring that all funds under their control are managed in such a
way to maximise return whilst minimising rlsk '

Prmcmal Rrsks and Uncertamtres

The Trustees and LGBs have assessed the major risks to which the company is exposed, in particular, those
related to academic performance, staffing, finance, and -safeguarding of pupils:. The fi inance, audit and. risk
" Committee review and update the risk register on a regular basis and policies and procedures have been put:in
_place to mitigate and manage identified risks. In particular, the Trust has a suite of robust polices covering the
key areas of risk, including a fi nancral regulatrons manual supported by a system of rigorous internal and
'external financial controls

In common with the national picture across schools the prrncrpal financial risk faced by the Trust'is the ongoing
* pressure on funding resultlng in budget deficits that cannot be mitigated by reserves. In Worcestershire
secondary schools the issue is acute, and it remains the fact that desplte the National ‘Funding. Formula, the
funding level for secondary puplls in Worcestershire is less per pupil per year than in other areas within the West,
. Midlands. '

The budg_et and monitoring process has been strengthened to monitor and take appropriate steps to manage, in-
" so far as is possible, the impact of this risk. The longer-term funding position improves with an increased PAN
. for the high school and the introduction of year 5in the prrmarles from 2019 and the mtroductlon of year 7 in the
high school from 2021. . : . o ; .

As the nature of the financial instruments dealt with by the Trust is relatively srmple (bank balances, debtors and
credrtors) Trustees ¢onsider the associated. risk in thrs area to be minimal. . -

The nsk resulting from the Trust's share of the LPGS def crt is managed by followrng the advice of the scheme’'s
- actuaries, specifically in relatron to the level of contnbutrons payable ensurlng ‘that annual budgets reflect the
actuarla[ advrce . . _
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B » Fun_ds Held as Custodian Trustee on Behalf of Others

ADEMY TRUST

. TRUSTEES' REPORT (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

‘Eundraising

The Trust is developing its fundraising plan setting out its aims' and demonstratmg how these aims link to the

values of the Trust. The plan adheres to the Charities SORP and the guidance issued by thé Charities .

‘Commission in relation to fundralsing In partlcular the 6 principlés of fundransnng

- Plans for Future Periods.

The vision. of the Trust is to build; through consrdered and controlled growth, & family of schoo!s that usé
effective. collabaration to ensure ambitious outcomes are achieved for ifs pupi allowing them to reach their futl
potential and becomie posmve confident and acfive members of tomorrow's global society.

To achieve this, it will continuse to build upon its repiltation for outstandlng teachlng and lgaming.. To facmtate

" this, it will ensure that all pupjls are able to equally access all areas of school life, including pastoral support, and

that pupll volce. is heard and has an impact. In addition, It will continue to énsure excellent learning through its
rigorous programme of Learning Walks and formal Lesson Observations, based on the: strlngent Ofsted crlterla

The Trust will contlnue to. work with other local schools in particular, those schools asp(rrng or consrdermg to

joining a multl academy Trust as well as working with the DfE and the Regional Schools Commlssmner

in line with the strategic plan, the Trust Board has agreed to maintain its current estabhshment untit the Trust has
returned fo surplus. This controfled approach is belng taken to ensure that the Trust is in the best posmon fo
welcome new schools, . , . . .

The Trust Board has been srgnlﬁcantly re-modeli"ed Headteachers of our founding schoois have stepped down

as Trustees to focus their efforts on managing the individual schools. New and eX|st|ng Trustees have srgnlf' cant
financial expertise and prior expenence of operating within. Multi Academy Trusts, in one instance as a retired

. Headteacher of a school In a MAT and in another as an éx-Governor in a sgchool within a MAT in another part of

the country. Whilst having the Headteachers as Trustees during the creation of the MAT undoubtedly helped that
process, the restructunng has resulted in a Trust Board able to take a more strategic view and.oversight role.

A new Member has been appomted to the Trust and brings with her srgmﬁcant expemse in corporate and chanty

‘governance.

Addltlonally we have récruited a new Clerk to the Trust who does not hold a Clérk post at any of ur schools, and

gy

© this also is allowlng the Trust Board to have a more balanced viéw and is already helping to drive’ collaboratlon in

"Fmance issues have again been hign on the agenda’ for the past year and will &f caurse contrnue to be so. Major

progress has been made ‘in planning and instigating short, medium and lorig-termn actions. Through the .

" significant successful gfforts of the CFOO and the Trustees, led by the finance, audit & risk Committes

members, we are. now in a position where we have greater clarity on the financial outlook for the Trust and can
start to'focus further on Increasing collaborative work on service lével, agreements and bought-iii services across

the Trust to increase the cost savmgs that realised in these areas. The on-gomg dlalogue with the SRMA will -

 further support this aim.

. The Trust Board has a vacancy remaining and is actively seekmg an individual® specnflcally with Human :

Resources andlor legal éxpetience as our sk|lls audit indicates these are areas wheré the current Board couldbe -

strengthened,

AY

The Trust does not hold any funds as custodian Trustee on behalf of others. .
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

TRUSTEES‘ REPORT (contmued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Auditor
In so far as the Trustees are aware: ‘ - - - S

o . there is no relevant audit lnformaflon of which the Charitable Gompany's ‘auditor is unaware and -
¢ the Trusteas have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit mformatlon and to establish that the’ audltor is.aware of that Tnformation; - . :

Trustees' report incorporating a Strategic Report, approved by order of the Board of Trustees as the company
. directors; on 12th .December 2019 and signed on the board's behalf by:

Andrew Longdon o _ } |
.Chair of Trustees . - - o S R
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

- Scope of Responsibility - -

- As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Avonreach Academy Trust has an

" effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However such a- system is designed to-
manage rather than eliminaté the risk of failure to achieve business ob]ectlves and can provide.only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has dei‘e'Qated the day-to-day responsibility to the Executive Officer, as Accounting';
- Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding .

* agreement between Avonreach Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are’also

responsrble for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns i in internal control.
- Governance

The maximum number of Trustees pemitted under the Trust's Articles of Association is 12 at any time. The
Diocesan Board of Education is entitied to appoint up to 3 Trustees, providing that the total number of Trustees
appointed does not exceed 25% of the total number of Trustees. The Executive Officer is Accounting Officer and
a Trustee. At their meeting in January 2019, members agreed to reduce the number of Trustees to 9. '

’ -There are three ‘Committees whlch also meet at least three times per year Finance Audit & Risk, HR &:

Performance and Chairs

Each Committee has a Chair and Vice Chair who are eleeted each year and terms of reference are also agreed
-annually. Although the Chair of Trustees can be a member of the Finance, Audit & Risk Committee they are not
" allowed to chair it. :

~Each meeting is duly minuted and attendance records are kept, absence from three consecutive meetings could

" result in dismissal from the Trust Board. Competences of all Trustees are considered prior to inclusion onto the
Trust Board, these are further scrutinised prior to acceptance onto the finance and audit Committee to ensure a
thorough mix of knowledge and expenence is available to give complete professmnal judgement on all decnsmns
made. .
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. GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

The mformatien on governance included here supplements that described in the: Trustees Report and in the
Statement of Trustees Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees has formally met 9 times during the year
Attendance during the year at meetlngs of the Board of Trustees was as follows '

Meetmgs attended Outofa possnble ‘
9

Andrew Longdon {Chair)
Rob Phillips (Vice Chair)
Clive Corbett (Executive Officer)
Martin Allen

Sarah Bitcon

Karen Rutter

Mark Slater

lan Cumming

] Julia Dean

Ann Derbyshire

Heidi Fear -

Phil Hanson.

Bob Stanton

Heather Thomson . .
Judy Wood

o]~ Slo|w|olw|w]a|s]olo|~
ala]o|alajolalo|w|w|s]s|olo

The Finance, Audit & Risk Committee .

The purpose of the finance, audit & risk Committee is to ensure the financial robustness of the Trust, to menitor
_financial performance against budget and to ensure financial propriety through the audlt of the Trust’s systems
and controls. . . . .

Attendanc;e at meetings in the year W'aé as follows:

Meetings attended Out of a possible
Heidi Fear (Chair until January 2019) 2 ' ) 2
Sarah Bitcon : 2 2
Phil Hanson 2 2
Andrew Longdon 4 5
Rob Phillips 2 2
Bob Stanton 5 5 .
Karen Rutter 3 3
lan Cumming (Chair from April 2019) 3 .3
Clive Corbett 4 5
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AVONREAGH ACAGEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (contiriued)

Review of Value for Money '

As Accounting Officer, the Executrve Officer has responsrbrhty for ensuring that the Trust delrvers good value ln
the use of public resources. The Accountlng Officer unhderstands that value for money refers to the educational -
and wider socretal outcomes achleved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

" The accounting officer considers how the academy’s use of Its resourées has prdvided good value for moriey

during edach academic year; and reports to the Board of Trustees where value for money can be improved
including the use of benchmarking data where available. The accounting ofﬁcer for the. Trust has delrvered

improved value for money durrng the year by

Ensuring that the Trust is operating with optimal staffing levels.
Comblning roles and responsibilities of staffing upon natural wastage:
Group tendering and economies of scale purchasing.

Sharing staff and resources:

Improved collaborative working via the MAT

The Purpose of the_ System of Interna_l Control .

The systern of internal control is designed '.to manage risk to-a reasonable level ratherthan to eliminate all risk of

failure to achleve: policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongomg process designed to identify
and prioritise the risks to the achlevement of the academy Trust policies, aims and objectives to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to mariage them’ efﬁclently,
effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Avonreach Academy Trust for
the year ended 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

. The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key rlsks to which the academy Trust is. exposed together wrth the"

operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mrtrgate those risks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluatlng ‘and managing the

“academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and
‘up to date of approval of the annual report and financial -statement. This process is regularly reviewed by the
Board of Trustees. . .

The Risk aid 'Con'tfol Framework

- The Triist's system of internal fi nancral control is based on & framework of regular management rnformation ‘and

adniinistrative procediires |nclud|ng segregation of duties and a system of delegatron and accountabil;ty In
particular, it includes: . 4 .

¢ Comprehenslve budgetlng and monitoring systems. with an annual budget and periodrc fi nancral reports T

‘which are réviewed and agreed by the Board of Trusteés.

e Regular reviews by the flnance and audit Committee of reports whrch rndicate frnancral performanoe .

against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes.
Setting targets to measure financial and other performanice.

Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital rnvestment) guidelines.

Delegation of authority and segregation of duties.

Identification and management of risks.

Trustees have embedded a system ofinternal assurance through the engagement of a separate audit team.
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AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

_ Review of Effectiveness

As Accountlng Off icer (Executlve Officer) has responsibility for reviewing the effectlveness of the system of

_ internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

' Feedback from the Flnance and Audit Commlttee

Feedback from the Chief Finaricial Officer and the Chiaiir of the Fmance ahd Audit Commlttee
Feedback and reports from the reviewer, as descrlbed above. .
Feedback from external advisors. :

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 12 Decdember 2019 and signed on their behalf

Andrew Longdon A ‘ Cllve Corbett
Chair of Trustees - N o Executlve Officer
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" STATEMENT ON REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE

As Accaounting Officer of Avonreach Academy Trust | have considered my responsibility to notify the academy
trust Board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety
and non-compliance with terms .and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the. funding
agreement in place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Fmancnal Handbook 2018. .

I confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper
use of funds by the. Academy Trust, of material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under
the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2019.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding. non-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are Identiﬂed after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the Board of
Trustees and ESFA -

Clive Corbjgtt- ‘
Executive Officer

Date: 12 December 2019
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- /AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for thepurposes of company law) are -
fesponsible for preparing the Group. strategic report, the Trustees' report and the financial statements in
accordance. with the Annual Accounts Direction issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United
Kinigdem Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg Practlce) and appllcable law
and regulations. . . . )

‘Company law redunres the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under eompany law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the: state of affairs of the charitable company-and the Group ‘and of its incoming resources and .
application of resources; including its income and expendlture for that perlod In preparlng these f inaricial -
statements, the Trustees are reqmred to: v o

. select suitable accounting pohcnes and then apply them' consnstently,

. observe the ‘methods and prlnc1ples of the Charities SORP 2015 and thé Academies Accounts D|rect|on
2018 to 2019; . . . . o
e  make judgments and accountlng estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

‘e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed subject to any materlal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; .

. prepare the fi nancial statements op the gomg concern. basns unless |t is mapproprlate to presume that
the charitable Group will continue in business. .

The Trustees are responS|bIe for keeplng adeguate accounting records that are suff cient to show and expfain
the charitable company and the Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the charitable company and the Group :and enable: them to ensure that the financial
-statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the -
- charitable company and the Group and. hence for taking reasonable steps: for the preventlon and detection of
fraud and other lrregulantles

'The Trustees -are respcnsmle for ensuring that in its conduét and opération the charitable company ‘and the
Group applies finahcial and other controls, which conform to thé reqiiiremients both of propriety and of good
financlal management. They are also responsibie for ensurmg grants recelved from ESFA/DfE have been
applled for the purposes lntended :

~ The Trustees are responslble for the maintenance and integrity- of ‘the' corporate énd financial |nfor'matlon‘ .
" Included on the charitable Group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom. governing the preparatuon and. .
dissemination of financial statements may differ from leglslatlon in other jurisdictions. :

~ Approved by order of the members of the Boa'rd of Trustees on 12th D'ece_mber 2019 and signed on its behaif
by: : : i . )

. Andrew Longdon
Chair of Trustees
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF

AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

Opinion

"We have audited the financial statements of Avonreach Academy Trust (the ‘parent academy’) and ‘its
subsidiaries (the 'group’) for the year ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Group Consolidated statement
of financial activities mcorporatlng income and expenditure account, the Group Consolidated balance sheet, the
Group Consolidated statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framewaork that has been applied in their preparation is applicable
law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg Practice), including
Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
~ Ireland’, the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Dlrectlon 2018 to 2019 lssued by the Education
& Skills Fundlng Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements

. give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the parent Academy's affairs as at 31 August
: 2019 and of the Group's incoming resources and " apphcatlon of resources, lncludlng its income and *
expenditure for the year then ended; : . .

.

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accountmg
. Practice; and . . _
.. have been prepared in accordance with the requlrements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charltles SORP
. 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 rssued by the Educat»on & Sk;lls Funding
’ Agency ‘ .

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the
Financial .Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical résponsibilities’ in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the- audlt evidence we have obtalned is sufficient, and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

.We draw attention to note 1.2 in the financial statéments, which indicates that the revenue reserves of the Trust
are in overall deficit as at 31st August 2019. As stated in noté 1.2, these events or conditions, along with the
other matters as set forth in the note 1.2 indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt -
on the Group's or the parent Academy's ab|hty to continue as a gomg concern. Our opinion is- not. modified in
 fespect: of this matter. . - ‘

Emphasis of matter :

In forming our opinion on the financial statements we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure in note 1
to the financial statements concerning the Academy's ability to continue as a going concern. The Academy has
‘deficit reserves of £237k included within the restricted general funds (excluding pension liability and fixed
assets). The financial statements do not include the adjustments WhICh would result if the Academy was unable
to contmue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF
AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

Other infonnation

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included

* in the Annual report, other than the financial statements and our Auditors’ report thereon. Our opinion on the
- financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise expllcrtly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. - : , A

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so,.consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with. the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to. be materially misstated. If we identify such material -
inconsistencies or apparent. material mlsstatements we are required to determine whether- there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the -
- work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material mrsstatement of this.other information, we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothmg to reportin th|s regard
Opmlon on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our'opinion, based on the vyork.undertaken in the course of the audit: :
o the information given in the Trustees' report including the Group strategic report for the financial year for-

which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements. -

L. * the Trustees’ report and the Group strategrc report have been prepared in accordance with applicable
Iegal requirements. .

Matters on which we are required to' report by exception

In-the light of our knorvtedge and u.nderstandmg of the Group and the parent Academy and its environment-
“obtained in the course of the audit, we have not |dent|fed material misstatements in the Trustees’ report-
_including the Group strateglc report .

We have nothmg to report in respect of the following matters in relation to WhICh the Compames Act 2006
- requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: -

. the parent Academy has not kept adequate accounting records or returns adequate for ‘our audlt have not
been recelved from branches not visited by us; or - ,

e ' theparent Academy financial statements are not in agreement. wuth the accounting records and returns or
. certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or '
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO THE MEMBERS OF -
AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

ResponSIbllities of Trustees

As explamed more fully in the Statement of Trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of - -

the Academy for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
“and for being satisfied that they give a true- and fair view,.and for such internal control as the Trustees determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. N

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent
Academy’s ability to continue as a going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to ||qu|date the Group or the,
parent Academy or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. ‘

AAuditors' responsibilities for the audit of the ﬁnancial statements

- Our abjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be. .
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our résponsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website- at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
Auditors’ report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy's members
those matters ‘'we are required to state to them in an Auditors' report and for no other purpose. To-the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy and its
members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. '

Russel Byrd FCA FCGA (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of
Randall & Payne LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audito_rs

Chargrove House
Shurdington Road
Shurdington
Cheltenham

. Gloucestershire
GL51 4GA

Date: 1 g 'D.ece,ml:er 019 |
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» INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO AVONREACH
- ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

In-accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 2 August 2019 and further to the requirements of
the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019,
we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and
income received by Avonreach Academy Trust during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have been
. applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the f nancial transactrons conform to the authorities which
- govern them. . . . .

This report is made solely to Avonreach Academy Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
“engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Avonreach Academy Trust and the
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fillest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume. responsibility to _anyone other than Avonreach Academy Trust and the
ESFA, for our work for this report, or for the conclusron we have formed. ’

Respective responsrbrlltles of Avonreach Academy Trust's accounting. offrcer and the reportmg
accountant

- The. Accounting Officer is responsrble under the requirements of Avonreach Academy Trust's fundlng )

" agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated December 2014, and the Academies Financial L

.. Handbook extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is
" applied for the purposes rntended by Parlrament and the fi nancral transactions’ conform to the authorrtres which -
govern them. . .

Qur responsibilities for this engagement are established.in the United. Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with ‘our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report t6 you whether anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income received during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

'Approach '

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academres Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by
the ESFA. We performed a trmrted assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter :

The objectrve of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtaln information and -
- explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropnate evrdence to express a negatrve conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement Accordrngly, we do not express a posmve opinion

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularrty and propnety of the :
Academy s income and expenditure. .
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS' ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARlTY TO AVONREACH
ACADEMY TRUST AND THE EDUCATION & SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY (contmued)

T Conclusion

In the course of our work, except for the matters listed below nothing has come to our attentlon which suggests

that'in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2018 to

31 August 2019 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not
-conform to the authontles Wh!Ch govern them. :

. Dunng the caurse of the 2018/1 9 financial year, the Academy remained in overa!l def cit.

Qamdwu %ym Z.Lf

Randall & Payne LLP .
" Chartered Accountants apdetatutory Auditors

. - Chargrove-House
"Shurdington Road
~ Shurdington
. Cheltenham
:Gloucestershire
GL514GA

- Date: [EHh Decamlw ;Lom
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. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES INCORPORATING INCOME AND
. EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT :
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

)

Income from:

- . Donations and capital grants

. Charitable activities. -
"Other trading activities -

"~ Total income

- Expenditure on: .
" 'Raising funds -

<+ .Charitable activities

Total expenditurev

. Net income/ (expenditure)
‘before transfers.
Transfers between Funds -

Net income lv(expendi‘t,ure) '
before other recognised.
gains and losses

Actuarial. gains/(losses) on
defined benefit penswn
schemes ‘

Net movement in funds’

Reconciliation of funds:
. Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried foMard .

Note

P Y REN

16

20

Restricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset . Total - - Total
funds funds . funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019 - 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1 307 35 623 209
- 7,351 . 7351 7195
770 . - 770 755
m 7,658 M5 8744 8,159
.366 .. . 366 343
1 8,496 326 ' 8,823 8,534
367 8,496 326 9,189 -8:877 .
404 (838) (1) s (719
(404). 363 41 . ' .
- - (475) 30 (445) - (718)
- (1,421) - (1.421) 573
- (1,896) 30  (1,866) (145)
- (3,046) 17,069 14,023 - 14,168
- (4,942) 17,099 12157 14,023

N ————— — — e ———— P —
= —————1 ] — ———_— ——
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AVONREACH AG
. ‘REGISTERED NUMBE

j _Y TRUST
07665384

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEAET.
' AS AT 31 AUGUST 2019

Fixéd asse,tg-
| Tangible assets
Chrrent assets
. Debtors
g Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falhng due wnthm one
year :

" Net current assets/(liabilities) -

- " 'Total assets less current liabilities
Deﬁn'ed benefit pension sche'me‘liability

o ‘Net assets including pensuon scheme

| . llabilities

Funds of the academy

Restricted income funds:

- Restricted income funds
Restricted fixed asset funds

Restncted income funds excludlng pension .
“liability

Pens;on res‘erve

Total restrlcted income funds

o _Shareholders and Charlty S funds

'- The ﬁnanmal statements on pages 28 to 56 were. approved by the_

Note

13

14.
15 -

20

16

16

Décember 2019 and are signed on their behalf, by:

g

Andrew Longdon
~ Chair of Trustees

(641) |

12,157

~ (4688)

S 2019
£0060 - £000
16,780
223
483
706
16,845 "
© (4,688)
(254)
17,099
16,845
12,157 - .
12457

- Clive Corbeétt
. Executive Officer

N 2018
£000 £000
16,970
car0
180
-(514) |
(54) |
16,916
(2,893)
14,023
L (153)
17,069
16,916 A
14,023
i4,023

rstées, and authorised for iss‘ué, on 12
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: AVONREACH "ACADEMY TRUST .
REGISTERED NUMBER 07665364

ACADEMY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST. 2019
SR 2019 - - 2018
Note © £000 . E000 . £000 £000
Fixed assets . ] ) ' - A
~ Tangible assets 13 - 16,780 - 16,970
‘Current assets - ‘ A
_ Debtors B 14 204 239
Cashat bank - - : 418 141
622 - 380
Credltors amounts falling due wlthln one - s e
year . , .. .- .15 (634) - (512) A
. _Net current liabilities ' | (12) B (132)
_Total assets less current liabilities - 16,768 16, 838
Defined beneﬁt.‘pension scheme li_'ability' S 20 - ' (4,688) 12, 893)
" Net assets mcludmg pénsion scheme ’ o _
liabilities ) 12,080 413,9{5
_Funds of the ‘academy :
Restricted funds: -
Restricted funds ‘ ' (194) - - (153)
Restricted fixed asset funds - i 17,082 17,069
Restricted funds excluding pension asset " 16,888 . 1691 6
Pension reserve. -(4,688) - (2,893
Total restricted funds 12,200 ' 14,023
Unrestricted funds- (120) " . (78) .
Total f’_llt)'dé g 12,080 13,945

The financial statements were approved by-the Trustees and authonsed for issue, on 12 December 2019 and_.

are signed on their behalf, by:

Aoy

Andrew Longdon
Chair of Trustees

'Cl_iv;COrbeft
Executive Officer

Page 30



CONSOLIDA‘TED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

‘Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities: .
Purchase of tangible fixed assets

" Capital grants from DfE Group
. Net cash provided by investing activities -
L Change in cash and casﬁ equivalérits- in the year
Cash and cash equivalents-brought forward

A Cash and cash equivalents carried forward

"Note

18

19

2019

2018

£000 £000 .

115 ' (162)
(136) - - - (102)

. 315 277
179 175
294 13
189 176
483

. 189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1. Accounting policies

A summary-of the pr|n0|pal accounting policies adopted (which ‘have been: apphed consistently,

11

except where noted), judgments and key sources of estlmatlon uncertalnty is set out below.

Bas:s of preparation of financial statements

Coe

The ﬂnanmal statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have
been prepared under the historical cost convention in-accordance with the Financial Reporting

Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by - -

Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charitie$-preparing their accounts in
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction. 2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA :
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Avonreach Academy Trust constitutes a publlc benefit entity as defined by FRS 102,

The Statement of financial. activities (SOFA) and Balance sheet consolidate the financial statements
of the Academy and its subSIdlary undertaking. The results of the subsidiary are consolidated on. a

_ line by line basis.

1.2

' No separate SOFA has been presented for the Academy alone as perrmtted by sectlon 408 of the

Compames Act 2006

Gomg concern

.The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate, i.e. Whether there are any
-material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of

the Academy to continue ‘as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a
period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements.

The Trustees have concluded fhat with cash reserves below the minimum térg_eted amount disclosed
in the reserves policy, and. carrying a deficit budget from 2018/19, the Trust will- continue to closely
monitor cash flow and use the support from the ESFA. The Academy is expected to continue as a

. going concern.
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'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

-1.3 lncome

All income is recogmsed once the Academy has entitlement to the income, it is probable that the
income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably. :

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis." The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt, its
recognltlon is deferred and included in credntors as deferred income. Where. entltlement oceurs -

~ before i rncome is recerved the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognlsed in full in the Statement of financial activities in the yearfor Whrch
it is receivable and any abatemerit i in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognlsed '
as a liability. . . ) .

" Capital grants are recognised when there is entittement and are ot deferred over the life of the

asset on which they are expended. Unspent amounts of caprtal grant are reflected in the balance in-
the restricted fixed asset fund. R .

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this rellably, in which case the cost of the itém to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as income from donations and a corresponding amount is included in the appropnate
fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the academy
trust's accountlng policies. :

Donatrons are recognlsed ona recelvable baS|s where recelpt is probable and the amount can be .
reliably measured

. Other income, including the hire of facrhtres is recognlsed in the penod in WhICh it is recervable and

to the extent the goods have been provrded oron completlon of the service.

Where assets are recerved by the trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are
measured at fair value and recognrsed in the Balance sheet at the point when the risk and rewards.
of ownership pass to the trust. An equal amount of income is recognlsed asa transfer on-conversion

. wrthrn Income from donations and capital grants.
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- NOTES 1"0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1..

Accounting policies (continued)

1.4

Experrdiiure :

- Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic

15

benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in =~
settlement and the amount of the obllgatron can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by
activity. The costs of each actrvrty are made up of the total of direct costs and 'shared costs, -
including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single
activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity
and support costs which are not attributable to a single acfivity- are apportioned between those
activities on a basis consistent with the.use of resources. Central staff costs_ are allocated on the
basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.-

Expenditure on 'raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy to ra_ise'fund's for its
charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-charitable  trading.

Expenditure on charitable activities are costs incurred on the Academy's educational. operatlons

‘including support costs and those costs relating to the governance of the Academy appomted to.
‘ chantable actlvmes . 4

All expendlture is inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.
Basrs of consohdatlon

The financial statements consolidate the.accounts of Avonreach Academy Trust and all of its )
subsidiary undertakings (subsudcarles') :

~

" The Academy has taken advantage of the exemption contained within section 408 of the Companles ‘

Act 2006 not to present its own Income and expendlture account.

The income and expendlture account for- the year dealt with in the accounts of the Academy was

© £77,000 (2018 - £118000)

1.6

Turnover

Turnover comprises revenue recognised by the Academy in respect of goods and servrces supplied
during the year, exclusive of Value Added Tax and trade dlscounts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1,

Accounting policies (continned)

1.7

Tangible fixed assets and deprec’iation

All assets costmg more than £500 are caprtahsed and are carried at cost, net of deprecratron and
any provision for impairment. :

Where tangible fixed assets ‘have been acqmred with the ard of specific grants either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in.the Balance sheet at cost and
depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached
to the-funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted -
fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet.

- Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the

Statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land, at rates<caleulated to
write off the cost of these assets, less their estlmated residual value over their expected useful lives

Jon. the following bases:

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for-impainnent.

- Depreciation is not chiarged on freehold land. Depreciation is provided at rates calculated to write off

the cost of fixed assets, less their estrmated residual value, over their expected useful lives on the

following bases:

Leasehold property - S0years
Furniture and-fixtures - 10% straight line
Computer equipment- - 33% straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate

- that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be. recoverable. Shoitfalls between the carrying

.18

1.9

value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as |mpa|rments lmpalrment
losses are recognlsed in the Statement of financial activities.

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepard net of any trade discounts due. -

Cash at Bank and in hand

Cash at.bank and in hand lncludes cash and short term highly liquid investments with a short

-maturity of three months or less from the date of acqu1sut|on or opemng of the deposit or similar

account
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" NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.

Accounting 'policies‘(continued)'

1.10 Liabilities and provisions

Liabilities and provisions are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance 'sheet date as a

result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement,
and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount
that the Academy anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced -
payments for the goods or services it must provide. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of
the amounts required ‘to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is’
material, the provision is based on the present value of those amounts, dlscounted at the pre-tax .
discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The unwmdlng of the discount is.
recogmsed W|th|n interest payable and snmrlar charges. :

1.141 Financial mstruments

Thé Academy. only holds basic financial mstruments as defmed in FRS 102. The financial assets, and, .

~ financial liabilities of the Academy and their measurement basis are as foIIows

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 14. Prepayments are not financial instruments. .

- Amounts due to the Academy’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face value less any |mpa|rment .
- Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value .

Financial liabilities - trade creditors;.accruals and other credltors are ﬁnancral mstruments, and are
measured at amortised costs as detailed in note 15. Taxation and social security are not.included in -
the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial
liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services
rather than cash or another financial instruments. Amounts due to the Academys wholly owned

: subs:drary are held at face value less any |mpa|rment

1 A2 Taxatlon

The Academy is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Flnance Act
2010 and thereford it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes.

Accordingly, the Academy is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains
received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section
256 of.the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are:
applied exclusively to charitable purposes. .

14 3 Pensions

: Retlrement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers Pensuon,

Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Governments Pensron Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defi ned benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy in such a way that the pension cost is'a

_ substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are

determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using.a prospective
unit credit method. As stated in note 20, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and there is
insufficient information available to use defined benefit accounting. The TPS is therefore treated as

" a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contnbutlons recognised in the

period to which they relate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

1.

Accounting policies (continued)

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust
in separate Trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair-value and
liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted
at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term
and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are
updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the cutrent
service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments.
They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net - defined benefit
liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by
multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income-on the scheme assets
and the actual.return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

1.14 Fund accounting

‘Unrestricted income funds _represent those resources which may be used towards meetmg any of

the charitable ObjeCtS of the Academy at the discretion of the Trustees.

Restncted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be apphed to specific capital purposes

imposed by funders where the asset acqulred or.created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds compnse all other restricted funds received with restnctlons |mposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Educatlon Group

145 Critical accounting estimates and areas ofjudgment

Estlmates and judgments are contmually evaluated and are based on histarical expenence and other'
factors, including expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the :
circumstances. :

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 4

" The Academy trust makes estimates and - assumptlons concerning the future. The resultmg

accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and.assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities wrthln the next ﬁnanmal year are dlscussed below.

The present vaIue of the Local Govérnment Pensron Scheme defined benefit Irablllty depends ona
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net-cost {income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any

-changes in these assumptions, which.are disclosed in note 20, will impact the carrying amount of the
" pension liability. Furthermore a roli* forward approach which projects results from.the latest full - .
- actuarial valuation performed at-31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the.-

pensions liability at 31 August 2019. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll -
forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension .
liability. . ‘
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' NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Income from donations and capital grants

) Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset "Total Total
funds “funds . funds " funds .+ funds-
: 2019 - 2019 2019 2019 .2018
_ \ ‘ . £000 £000 £000 £000 ~ £000
Donations - 1 307 - . 308 .12
Capital Grants ) - Ce 281 . 281 72
Devolved formula capltal ‘ - - 34 . - 34 . 125
1 307 315 623 209
Total 2018 : A - 12 197 - 209
Fundmg for. Academy s educational operations V _ . ) '
' ' Unrestricted  Restricted Total Total
funds funds - - funds funds
2019 . 2019 E 2019 2018
£000 £000 - £000 " £000
DfE/ESFA grants ' '
General Annual Grant . 6,679 6,679 6,633
Rates Reclaim - * - 42 42 . - 47
Pupil Premium and Servuce Premlum B . 185 185 - 183
Universal Infant-Free School Meals ' o S B '
(UiFSM) .. - 84 . 84 , 72
PE and Sports Grant - - 81 . 51 51 .
Other' DfE and ESFA - ca - 82 . . 82 - 25
LA - Special Educational Needs (SEN) - . 145 145 95"
Other LA Revenue Grants - : 83 83 89
e 7,351 7,351 7,195
Total 2018 7,195

I 7,195

Page 38



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Other trading activities

Unrestricted -

Total 2018 S 5,765

Restricted ‘Total Total .
funds funds funds: funds -
2019 - 2019 © 2019 2018
o ‘ . £000 £000 £000 £000
Music Tuition : o 18 - 18 21
Hire of facilities _ : . 8 - 8 6
Other income ‘ - - s 3
Catering income . . T - 1 14
Trading recharges : : 30 - 30 79
Otherincome . . 263 - 263 277
. 320 - 320 400
Total 2018 — ' 400 ] © 400
_Expenditure , ‘ .
Staff costs Premises Other costs - Total Total
- 2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
£000 £000 - £000 ~ £000 £000
Experiditure on fundraising
trading o § O o
Direct costs : -149 - 217 366 343
Support costs - - - - -
Educational Operations ~
Direct: : o L
~ Direct costs : 5,413 - 624 6,037 5,765
Support casts . ' 1,628 120 1,038 2,786 2,769
7,190 - 120 1,879 9,189 8,877
~ Total 2018 ‘ _ - 6,807 - 161 1,909 8,877
Analysis of expenditure Aby activ.itiés ‘
- Activities
undertaken Support
directly costs Total Total
2019 2019° 2019 2018 .
. £000 £000 £000 £000 .
Educational Operations Direct : 6,037 2,786 8,823 8,534
2,769 8,534
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Analysis of expen'diture_by activities (continued)

Analysis of direct costs ,
: - Educational

Operations Total Total
. Direct . . . 2019 2018
. _ £000 £000 - £000
Pension costs IR £ 77 77
Educational supplies . 401 401 341
Examination fees : . ' - 115 115 - 97
Technology costs . 23 23 34
Other S ' - 2 -2 1
. Wages and salaries ’ : o . " 4,366 - 4,366 4,170
" National insurance : : . 366 - 366 371
Pension cost . o . 681 681 657
" Depreciation : . . 6 6 17 .
6,037 6,037 - 5,765
. At 31 August 2018 - - 5765 5,765
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. NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 -

Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

- Analysis of support costs

Staff costs

. Depreciation
Staff expenses
Other staff costs -
Insurance .
Technology costs
Other
Maintenance of prem|ses
Cleaning and caretakmg
Rates

" Energy
Security
Transport .
Catering
Other premises costs
Legal & professional
Auditor costs

Subtotal
Other support costs

At 31 August 2018 -

Net income/(expenditure)

This is stated after chargmg

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

- owned by the charitable group
Auditors' remuneration - audit
Auditors' remuneration - non-audit costs
Operatmg Iease costs

Educational
Operations Total Total
‘Support 2019 2018
. £000 £000 £000
1,628 - 1,628 1,488
321 321 348
1 1 -
4 4 9
67 - 67 - 58
93 93 159
40 40 35
62 62 85"
45 45 47
27 27 67 .
129 129 133
1 1 3 .
32 32 37
119 119 - 118
65 65 76
125 125 - 88
28 28 18
2,787 2,787 2,769
(1) (1 -
2,786 2,786 2,769
2,769 2,769
2019 2018
-£000 £000-
326 - 365
13 13
12 5
4.

11

Page 41



) e " - - - -
s Aol b - N - oo, B e I P . R I

-
P

AVONREACH ACADEMY TRUST

e — s —— . i -

'NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

" Staff costs
Staff costs

Staff costs were as follows:

2019 - 2018

, £000 £000

Wages and salaries . ) ’ 5,482 : 4,924

Social security costs ‘ 427 434

Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes ' 1,240 1,411
7,149 6,769 -

Agency staff costs . _ 30 26

Apprenticeship Levy 4 : o 11 : 12

7,190 6,807

Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy during the year was as follows:

, 2019 2018

, ' No. No:

Teachers - o : 88 88
 Administration and support - ' 112 113
Management ‘ ' ' 7 10
207 21

Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded
£60, 000 was:

2019 ’ 2018

No. No.

In the band £60,001 - £70,000 2 - -0
In the band £70,001 - £80,000 . 0 : 1
In the band £80,001 - £90,000 . - . ) 1 : .0

3 (2018 - 3) of the above employees participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme. During the period
ended 31 August 2019, pension contributions for these staff amounted to £34,000-(2018 - £32,000).

Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the ‘academy trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management
team as listed on page 2. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension
contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was
£397,358 (2018 - £342,365).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

Central services .
The Academy has provided the following central services to its academies during the year:

" Financial Services

[ ]

. Legal Services
. Procurement

e - HR Support

) IT Support

[ ]

Educational Support .
The Academy charges for these services on the folowing basis:

' The ceﬁtral service charge is calculated based on 6% of income. ‘
The actﬁal amoints charged 'dufing the year Wére' as 1f0||0Y\.ISI

| o 2019 2018

: ’ : .+ £0000 .£000

Cherry Orchard First School : . ‘ _ . 12 7
Inkberrow Academy ' : U | -6

. Norton Juxta Kempsey 11 . 6

81 54

Pershore High School

15 73
Total | ' e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019

10.

".

12

Trustees remuneratlon and expenses .

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment

with the Academy. The Principal and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services

they provide undenaking the roles of principal and other staff members under their contracts of -
employment, and not’in respect of their role as Trustees The value of Trustees' remuneratlon and other

benefits was as follows: . A

12019 - 2018

£000 £000
Russell Dalton, Director Governor Remuneration - ' A . 35-40-
- "+ Pension contributions paid . e 5-10
Sarah Bltcon Headteacher (reSTgned Remuneration ' - .20-25 . - 55-60
-as Staff Trustee 17 January 2019) Pension contributions pald 05 5-10
‘Heather Thomson, Headteacher U . N
(reS|gned as Staff Trustee 17 January Remuneratlon o ‘ 20-25 - ~55-60
2019 -~ - : Pension contributions paid 0-5 5-10
- Julia Dean, Headteacher (resigned as Remuneration : © 2025 25-30
. Staff Trustee 17 January 2019) Pensnon contributions pald C 0-5 - 510
Philip Hanson, Headteacher (resigned Remuneration - ) : 30-35 ‘ - 70-75
_ as Staff Trustee 17 January 2019) Pension contributions paid S 05 .- 10-15

During the year ended 31 August 2019; no Trustees recelved any reumbursement of expenses (2018 -
£NIL) .

Trustees’ and Offlcers Insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practlce the academy has purchased insurance to protect Trustees
and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy -
business. The insurance provides cover up to £3,000,000 on any one claim and the cost for the year
ended 31 August 2019 was £2 376 (2018 - £2, 376) ; .o N o ,

Pension costs

2019 - 2018

A . _ _ £000 ' £000
interest income on pension scheme assets ’ . 85 - 62
Interest on pension scheme liabilities , - (162) : (139)
(17) (77)
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13.

Tangible fixed assets

Group

"~ Cost

At1 Septembér 2018

Additions
.At 31 August 2019

Depreciation :

At 1 September 2018 -

Charge for the year -

At 31 August 2019

Net book value
At 31 Augus.t 2019

At 31 August 2018

Academy
Cost

At 1 September 2018
Additions ~

At 31 August 2019

Depreciation
At-1 September 2018

. Charge for the year

At 31 August 2019

Net book value
At 31 August 2019

At 31 August 2018

Leasehold Furniture = Plantand - . R
property and fixtures equipment "Total - .
" £000 £000 : £000 £000
18,711 28 " 301 19,040
113 5 18 136
18,824 33 319 19,176
' 1,755 14 301 12,070
318 2 6 . 326
2,073 16 307 . 2398
16,751 17 42 | 16,780
16,956 14 - 016,970
Long-term ] .
leasehold Furniture Plant and
property and fixtures equipment Total
 £000 ~ £000 ° -£000 £000
18,711 28 301 70 19,040
13 5 T8 136 -
18,824 33 M9 18476
1,755 14 301 2,070
318 2 6 326
2,073 16 ~~307 - 2,396
16,751 17 A2. . 16,780
16,956 14 ; 16,970
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13.

~14.

15.

Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Included in long-term Ieasehold property is land at valuatlon of £2,910,700 (2018-- £2, 910 ,700) whtch has .
- not been depreciated. .

The freehold of the properties are ’owned by both 'the local authority, where the Trust lease the sites on a:
125 year lease for nil rental, and the Diocese, where the Trust lease the site on a 2 year Iease for nil

~ rental.

Aln accordance with the SORP the assets have been recogmsed in the academy- trust’s -accounts,
. representing.the 'right to use’ the property

Debtors v ‘
" Group " Academy
12019 2018 2019 - 2018
- ) £000 - £000 £000 - - £000
Trade debtors o o : 36 49 R b AN 18
Other debtors - ' - ~- 90 125 90 125
Prepayments and accrued income S 96 .97 . 96
223 270 - 204 239

Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year . ,

' » Group = Academy
2019 - 2018. - - 2019 2018
. : .£000 . £000 © .. £000. - - = £000
‘Trade creditors = -' : 377 222 37 . 222
Other taxation and social security ' ) 218 213 218 - 213
Accruals and deferred income 46 79 45 77
641 . 514 634 512
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‘16. Statement of funds_

4

Balance at o .
o 1 o - .- Balanceat
September Transfers Gains/ 31 August -
2018 ‘Income Expenditure infout (Losses) - 2019
v £000 , " £000 . £000 .. £000 ~ -~ £000 ..£000
Unrestricted funds ' . o '
General Funds - all funds - . 771 . (367) (404) ' - -
Restricted funds -
" GAG - © o (153) 6,721 (7,185) 363 - (254)
Other DfE/ESFA Grants - 132 (132) - - So-
_ Pupil Premium L. . 185 " (185) - - -
SEN - - 145 (145) - . . ]
. Donations . 223 . (23) - - .
UIFSM | - 84 (84) . - )
NEF = . L 83 . (83) - SN .
Pension reserve (2,893) 85 - (459) - (1,421) (4,688)
" (3,046) 7,658 (8,496) 363 (1,421) - (4,942)
' Restricted fixed asset funds ‘
Fixed Assets 16971 .  (326) 152 . 16,797
. Capital Grants 72 281 - (111) - 242
Devolved Formula Caprtal 26 34 - T 60
: 17,069 M5 (326) 4 - 17,099
Total restricted funds 14,023 7,973 (8,822) 404 .~ (1,421) 12,157
Total of funds - 14,023 8744 (9,189 - (421) 12157

_The specific purposes for whrch the funds are to be applled are as follows:

“The restricted general fund includes grants receivable from the EFA DfE Iocal authonty and other
government grants-to be used for the pnmary actrvrty of the chantable company.

The fi xed asset fund relates to the grants recelved and assets donated/transferred in and are held for the

" . charitable company S prlmary activity.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy was not sub]ect to a limit on the
amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2018.
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16.

Statement of funds (continued)

Analysns of academles by fund balance ~ - : o A A SR
Fund balances at 31 August 2019 were allocated as follows I
o  Total " Total

2019 ' 2018
. . £000 . £000
Cherry Orchard First School - ‘ 7 X1 125
Inkberrow First School - ' T A _ R 10 39
Norton Juxta Kempsey School - (3) 59
Pershore High School ‘ ' ' -7 (507) (322)
Avonreach Academy Trust . o . 15 . (53)
Total before fixed asset fund and pens:on reserve ' : f '“‘(254)'- e (152)
Restricted fixed asset fund . : - _ B 17,099 17,069
Pensuon reserve ’ » : o _ - (4,688)  (2,893)
Total . . S 12,157 14,024

The fd|]owihg academy'is cai'rying a net deficit on its portion of the funds as follows:

Name of academy’ B o Amount of deficit

4 e 000
Pershore High School ' o ' , ’ 807
Norton Juxta Kempsey School. A - ' 3.

This has been due to the reduction in funding and increased costs incurred in the prlor year, and this year
the effects of the governor approved extensive budgetary reductlons to ensure strateglc financial planning
has reduced the deficit incurred in year from.the prior year to this.

The Academy is taking the following action to return the academles to surplus: K

© A new management team has reduced the level 6f deficits predicted in future périods, in order to ensure .

" . postive cashflow is maintained without the need for external assistance and an overall surplus can be built

up on revenue funds - both for the Academy and the Trust as a whole.» = . .
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16.

Statement of funds (continued)

Analysis of ‘academ-i'es by coét -

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as‘followsz

Teaching :
and R Other costs
educational Other ) excluding . B
. support support Educational depreciat- -. .. Total - Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies ion . ., 201 '
_ £000 - £000 ."£000 £000 - 000
Cherry Orchard 4 : S
First School 585 63 50 12 810 788
Inkberrow First ' o : . . Lo
School 41 68 37 73 589 560
Norton Juxta i e
Kempsey School 442 47 35 103 627 . 573
Pershore High = R
. School 3,965 1,114 401 484 .5,964 5,922
- Avonreach ] o e . . o
' Academy Trust ’ 1 . . 2 ' 372 385 92_:
5,414 - 1,292 525 - 1,144 8,375 7,935
Statement of funds - prior year B R
' ~ Balance at Balanceat -
" 1 September. . Transfers - -Gains/ 31 August -+ @7
2017 .Income . Expenditure “infout .- (Losses) -2018 -
. ' £000 £000 :£000 £000 £000 £000
General Funds -all funds: 182 - 756 (365) (573) - e
" Restricted funds - _ N
GAG I - 6,680 (7,402) - . 569 - © (153)
Other DfE/ESFA Grants - 76 (76) - -
Pupil Premium ' .- 183 (183). - - - -
SEN . DL 95 95 . - - )
Donations ' : - 12 - (12). - - -
UIFSM o - - - 72 (72) - - -
NEF - 89 (89) - - -
. Pension reserve (3,248) .- . (218) - 573 (2,893)
(3,248) 7,207 . (8147) 569 573 (3,046)
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16. Statementdftunds (éontinued)

Restricted fixed asset funds B

102 -

Fixed Assets S 7234 - (365) - 16,971 -
Capital Grants - - ‘ 72 - - - 72
, Devolved Formula Capital - 124 . - (98) - 26
o _ 17,234 196 (365) 4 - 17,069
“Total restricted funds. 13986 7,403 (8512) 573 . 573 . 14,023
Total of funds 14168 - 8159 - (8,877) - 573 14,023
17.  Analysis of net assets between funds A
; A - Restricted -
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset - Total -
" funds © funds- funds funds
2019 2019 . 2019 2019
_ £000° £000° £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets - | S C . . - 16,779 16,779 -
Current assets S - 386 320 - 706
Creditors due within one year - . . - (640) -~ - (640)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (4,688) - (4,688)
- (4,942) 17,099 12,157
'Analysis of net assets between funds -.prio‘r year '
‘ Unrestricted ~ Restricted  Restricted - Total
* funds funds - fixed asset funds
A © . funds ‘
2018 2018 2018 . 2018
_ £000 £000 . £000 £000
" Tangible fixed assets - - - 16,970 16,970
“Current assets : I , (65) 442 . 99 461
~ Creditors due within one year C ‘ 79 (594) - (515)
Provisions for liabilities and charges . - (2,893) - (2,893}
14 . (3045 . 17,069

14,023 -
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18.

19.

Zo-l

Reconciliation of net rnovemént in funds to net cash flow from operating activities

Group

2019 2018
' - £o00 . £000
" Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of Financial Activities) - (445) (718)
Adjustment for: R S . . -
Depreciation charges . : . 327 365
“Increase/ (decrease) in credltors o ‘ : o127 (24)
Decrease in debtors - o 47 274
Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (315) - (277)
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost . ' . 374 . 218
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities X 115 (162)
Analysis of cash and cash equivalen‘ts . ‘
Group .
2019 2018
' , ' £000 © £000
Cash in hand o T L - 483 . 189
Total . | - w3 189

Pension commitments

The Group's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teacher's Pension Scheme for
England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by Worcestershire County Councnl Both are Multi-
employer defined beneF t pens:on schemes. :

The Iatest actuarial valuatlon of the TPS related to the penod ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
. March 2016. .

Contributions amountmg to £104 325 were payable to the schemes. at 31 August 2019. (2018 100,608)
and are included within credltors .

'

Teachers Pension Scheme

Introduction

. The Teachers Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme governed by

the Teachers' Pensions Regulations (2010) and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pension Scheme
Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1 January 2007,

. -automatic for teachers in-part-time employment following appomtment or a change of contract although .
. they are able to opt out '

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contributé on a ‘pay as you go’ basis — these contributions

along ‘with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension
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20. .

Pension commitments (continued)
benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme

' The GovernmentActuary, using normmal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS
. in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 .

published by HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and
many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS ‘was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in

.accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap)’ Directions 2014. The
valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 9 June 2014 The key elements of the

valuation and subsequent consuitation are:

. employer contribution rates -set at 16. 48% of pensnonable pay, including a 008% employer"

. .administration charge.

o . total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of fture benefi ts) for’

service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and- notional assets (estimated future contributions
_together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 m|II|on giving a not|onal
past service deficit of £14,900 million
o anemployer cost cap of 10. 9% of pensionabte pay will be applied to future valuations

- o _the assurned real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of

real earnmgs growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%.

The TPS valuatlon for 2012 determmed an employer rate of 16.4%, which was payable from September
2015. The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the

" employer contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from-1 April 2019.

The employer’s pension costs paid to TPS in the perio‘d amounted to £581,000 (2018 - £568,000).

A copy of the valuation' report and supportmg documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website

“(www.teacherspensions.co. uk/news/employers/2014/06/publrcat|on -of- the-valuatlon report aspx)

Under the definitions set out.in FRS 102, the TPS lS an unfunded multi-employer. pensnon scheme The'
trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contnbutron scheme The °

trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.
Local Government Pension Scheme B

The LGPS is a funded defined beneflt scheme, wlth assets held in separeteltrustee-'admihist_ered fuh‘ds.

" The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2019 was £347,000 (2018 - £448,000), of which

employer's contributions totalled £263,000 (2018 - £354,000) and employees' contributions totalled
£84,000 (2018 - £94,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19. 2% for employers and 5-
6% for employees : :

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to.a- -guarantee that, in the .
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the . .

Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013. .
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20.

_Principal actuarial assumptions:

Pension commitments (continﬁe’d_) _

Discount rate for scheme liabilities ' 1.80 %
Rate of increase in salaries , 3.50 %
Rate of increase for pensions in payment / mﬂatlon ‘ . . 210 %
|nflat|on assumptlon (CPl) o , : »2.00'%

2019 -

Reiring today . . _

Males - ‘ . : 228
Females ' = . b . ' L . 258
Retiring in 20 years ‘ : . : . ,

Males - ‘ : 25.1

_ Females - : . ' ' 28.2

At 31 August

Sensitivity analysis o o . 2019

i ‘ . : £000
Discount rate +0.1% S o (181)
Mortality assumption - 1 year ‘increase - , . 146

CPlrate +0.1% S : . ' 185
The Gr'oup's share of th_e assets in the scheme was:

Fair value at.

2019

At 31 August

2018

280 %
. 360%
220%
2.10 %

‘The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future |mprovements m mortallty rates..
"The assumed life expectatlons on retlrement age 65 are: .

' '201'8

‘227
267

24.9
280

2018
© . £000
(175) -
130
125

Fair vélue"at '

" 31 August - 31 August
' 2019 2018
‘ A . .£000 £000 -
'Equmes : ' : , ‘ . 2,364 2,225
Govemment bonds , ‘ 250 2231
Corporate bonds . - 167 . 133 .
Property : o A . : 200 136
Cash and other Ilqmd assets' , _ . a7 - 61
Other . o C - 2857 104
Total market value of assets Co Co N : 3,335 2,890

The actual return.on scheme assets was £132,000 (2018 - £164,000).
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20.

Pension commitments (conti'nued)

_ The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

Current service cost
Past service cost

- Interest income
Interest cost
Admin expenses -

Total

Actual return on scheme assets

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation were as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
‘Current service cost

Interest cost ‘

Employee contributions

Actuarial losses/(gains)

Benefits paid

Past service costs

Closing defined benefit obligation S -

Movements in the fair value of the Group's share of scheme assets:

Opening fair value of scheme assets
Interest income -
Actuarial losses ‘

- Employer contributions
Employee contributions
Benefits paid _
Administration expenses

* Closing fair value of scheme assets

2019

2018

£000 - . . £000,.
- (422) " (489)

- (133) -
85 .62
" (162) (139)
()~ (4)
(637) (570)
132 164 -
2019 2018
£000 £000
5,783 5,501
422 489
162 139
84 94
1,468 (470)
(29) 30
133’

8,023 - 5783

2019 2018
£000 £000
2,890 2253 .
85 82
a7 103.
263 354
84 94
(29) 30
(5) (6)
3,335 2,890
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2.

- 22,

23.

24.

Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2019 the total of the Group's future minimum Iease payments under non-cancellable
operatlng leases was: :

Other

T . : 2019 2018
Group and Academy : _ : : £000 £000
Amounts payable: ' : R o
Within 1 year - - R 11
Between 1and 5 years™ - A o . e 14

Total . : . - Cn 25

Members' liability . .
Each Member of .the charrtable company undertakes to contrrbute to the assets of the company in the . - -
* event of it.being wound up while he/she is a Member, or within one year after he/she ceases to'be a

ember, such amount as may be required, not exceedlng £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before he/she ceases to be a Member. A

.Related party transactlons ‘

meg to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees bemg drawn from
local public and .private sector organisations, transactions may take place ‘with organisations in which’
Trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with
the-requirements of the AFH and with the trust's financial regulatrons and normal procurement procedures
relatmg to connected and related party transactions.

S 2019 . 2018

| £000 £000
Clive Corbett as__EO of the Trust ' S ' T 12 5

The above expenditure was provrded with regards to the posrtlon as EO of the Trust rather than asa .’

Trustee. .

Principal subsidiary
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24.

. Principal subsidiaries (continued)

Pershore High School Trading Limited

Subsidiary name . o - Pershore High School Tr‘ading‘Limited

Company registration number 07685911

Basis of control : " Shareholders and shared directorships
Equuty shareholdlng % . 100%

Total assets as at 31 August 2019 - £78

Total liabilities as at 31 August 2019 ' £ -

Total equity as at 31 August 2019 . S £78

Turnover for the year ended 31 August 2019 > T

Expenditure for the year ended 31 August 2019 . £ -

Result for the year ended 31 August 2019 o £ . -

Pershore Hngh School . Trading lelted subs:dlary of Avonreach Academy Trust is exempt from the

requirement of audit under s479a of the Companies Act 2006.
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